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WHEREUPON, the f o l l o w i n g proceedings were had a t 

4:15 p.m.: 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Okay, c a l l Case Number 12,693, 

A p p l i c a t i o n of McElvain O i l and Gas P r o p e r t i e s , I n c . , f o r 

compulsory p o o l i n g , Rio A r r i b a County, New Mexico. 

MR. FELDEWERT: May i t please the Examiner, 

Michael Feldewert w i t h the law f i r m of Holland and Hart and 

Campbell and Carr, f o r the A p p l i c a n t , McElvain O i l and Gas 

Pr o p e r t i e s , Inc. I have two witnesses today. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Other appearances? 

MS. WALTA: Yes, Mary Walta, White, Koch, K e l l y 

and McCarthy, appearing on behalf of Noseco Corporation, 

Gavilan Dome Pr o p e r t i e s , Mesa Grande L i m i t e d P a r t n e r s h i p , 

Mesa Grande Resources and Neumann Family T r u s t , a l l of whom 

are working i n t e r e s t owners i n the east h a l f of Section 5, 

which i s the area t h a t was covered by t h i s A p p l i c a t i o n . 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Okay. Do you have any 

witnesses? 

MS. WALTA: I do not. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Very good. The witnesses w i l l 

i d e n t i f y themselves f o r the record. 

MR. STEUBLE: John Steuble, McElvain O i l and Gas. 

MS. BINION: Mona Bi n i o n , McElvain O i l and Gas. 

(Thereupon, the witnesses were sworn.) 

EXAMINER BROOKS: You may proceed when ready, Mr. 
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Feldewert. 

MR. FELDEWERT: Thank you, we c a l l — 

MS. WALTA: Mr. Examiner, before we begin t a k i n g 

testimony i n t h i s case, I would l i k e t o r a i s e a procedural 

matter, and the procedural matter r e l a t e s t o the s u b j e c t -

matter j u r i s d i c t i o n of t h i s agency. We are here pursuant 

t o an A p p l i c a t i o n t h a t was f i l e d f o r compulsory p o o l i n g of 

a 32 0-acre pooled area i n the east h a l f of Section 5. 

However, i t appears t h a t t h e r e i s an op e r a t i n g 

agreement t o which a l l of the p a r t i e s are p a r t i e s and are 

su b j e c t and t o which t h i s e n t i r e east h a l f of Section 5 i s 

su b j e c t , the e n t i r e 32 0 acres. And consequently, I guess I 

am wondering why we are here before t h i s body when we have 

a c o n t r a c t among a l l of the working i n t e r e s t owners t h a t 

covers a l l of the acreage, and why are we not proceeding 

pursuant t o the terms of the operating agreement r a t h e r 

than here before t h i s body? 

So I would l i k e t o c a l l t h a t t o your a t t e n t i o n 

and b a s i c a l l y say t h a t because of t h i s o p e r a t i n g agreement 

I do not b e l i e v e t h a t the agency has subject-matter 

j u r i s d i c t i o n . 

Also I would l i k e t o say t h a t t h e r e i s a l a w s u i t 

pending according t o the complaint which was f i l e d by the 

A p p l i c a n t i n t h i s case, McElvain. This p r o p e r t y appears t o 

be p a r t of the subject matter which was covered by t h a t 
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l a w s u i t , and t h a t l a w s u i t involves a farmout or far m - i n 

agreement, an all e g e d agreement, and under t h a t a l l e g e d 

f a r m - i n agreement, McElvain contends t h a t i t has a r i g h t t o 

earn the working i n t e r e s t of my c l i e n t s by d r i l l i n g a w e l l , 

and I am concerned t h a t t h i s body may take some a c t i o n 

which would change the r i g h t s of the p a r t i e s as they are 

l i t i g a t i n g . 

I t appears t h a t McElvain has f i l e d t h i s 

A p p l i c a t i o n i n order t o do an end run on the matters t h a t 

are before the D i s t r i c t Court i n Santa Fe County and again 

performing under t h i s disputed c o n t r a c t i n order t o earn 

the i n t e r e s t s t h a t are being l i t i g a t e d , and I would not 

want t o see anything done by t h i s agency t h a t would a f f e c t 

the r i g h t s of the p a r t y a t a l l . 

I t appears t h a t McElvain b e l i e v e s t h a t i f they 

can end-run, get the r i g h t t o proceed under i t s A p p l i c a t i o n 

here and d r i l l the w e l l , t h a t i t may somehow be able t o 

seal the deal t h a t they claim they have made, but ou t s i d e 

the context of the l a w s u i t t h a t i s now pending. 

So I wanted t o r a i s e those matters as procedural 

issues before we get i n t o the substance of the A p p l i c a t i o n 

here. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Okay, i s i t c o r r e c t t h a t t h i s 

i s — i s t h i s the same case i n which I conducted a 

prehearing conference — 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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MS. WALTA: Yes, i t i s . 

EXAMINER BROOKS: — w i t h the p a r t i e s p r i o r t o a 

previous s e t t i n g . 

MS. WALTA: Yes. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: I t was my understanding a t t h a t 

time t h a t i t was uncontested, t h a t McElvain had an i n t e r e s t 

i n t h i s proposed u n i t independent of the farmout t h a t was 

in v o l v e d i n the l i t i g a t i o n ; i s t h a t not c o r r e c t ? 

MS. WALTA: That i s my understanding. I 

understand t h a t one of the other p a r t i e s , i n f a c t , NM&O, 

who i s the former operator of the p r o p e r t y , or perhaps they 

c l a i m they are s t i l l the operator, conveyed some small 

working i n t e r e s t or has an arrangement of — we do not know 

the p a r t i c u l a r s of t h i s , but has an arrangement of some 

s o r t whereby McElvain has some small working i n t e r e s t i n 

the acreage somewhere i n the east h a l f of Section 5. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Okay. Would you l i k e t o 

respond on the issue of the a l l e g e d o p e r a t i n g agreement, 

Mr. Feldewert? 

MR. FELDEWERT: Mr. Examiner, I'm not aware of an 

opera t i n g agreement t h a t has been signed by a l l the working 

i n t e r e s t owners i n t h i s property. We have requested when 

they f i r s t r a i s e d the issue of an oper a t i n g agreement t h a t 

they produce us a copy of t h a t agreement. They have not 

done t h a t . I don't know whether they have one today, but 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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we 1 r e not aware of an operating agreement t h a t covers the 

east h a l f of Section 5, which i s why we are p o o l i n g t he 

p a r t i e s here today. 

Other procedural issues, I t h i n k we've already 

been through t h i s hoop — 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Right, t h a t ' s — 

MR. FELDEWERT: — some time ago. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: — t h a t ' s why I asked you t o 

respond only on the question of the o p e r a t i n g agreement — 

MR. FELDEWERT: Thank you. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: — because I understand them t o 

e s s e n t i a l l y concede t h a t t h e r e may be evidence t h a t 

McElvain has an i n t e r e s t independent of the i n t e r e s t t h a t ' s 

i n l i t i g a t i o n . I t h i n k you understand t h a t the A p p l i c a n t 

being an owner w i t h i n the u n i t i s one of the matters here 

which you have t o prove. 

But you may proceed w i t h your case. 

MR. FELDEWERT: Thank you. 

MS. WALTA: I do have, by the way, the op e r a t i n g 

agreement. I'm a l i t t l e — 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Okay. 

MS. WALTA: — sur p r i s e d t h a t Mr. Feldewert 

doesn't have i t , since obviously i t appears t h a t he got h i s 

i n t e r e s t from the operator, and — 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Well — 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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MS. WALTA: — I wouldn't know why he wouldn't 

have a copy of t h i s o perating agreement. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Let me make my p o s i t i o n c l e a r . 

I'm not r u l i n g on the j u r i s d i c t i o n a l issue, and indeed, I 

don't t h i n k as a Hearing Examiner I can r u l e on an issue 

t h a t — I can r u l e on a procedural issue, but I don't t h i n k 

I can r u l e on a j u r i s d i c t i o n a l issue. I t h i n k t h a t ' s 

something the D i r e c t o r has t o r u l e on, based on the Hearing 

O f f i c e r ' s recommendation. 

But i f you need t o place the op e r a t i n g agreement 

i n evidence and you have a witness t o sponsor i t , we can 

swear another witness, i f need be. 

MS. WALTA: Okay. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: You can do t h a t when you 

present your case. 

You may proceed, Mr. Feldewert. 

MR. FELDEWERT: Thank you, Mr. Examiner. 

MONA L. BINION, 

the witness h e r e i n , a f t e r having been f i r s t d u l y sworn upon 

her oath, was examined and t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s : 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. FELDEWERT: 

Q. Ms. Bini o n , would you please s t a t e your f u l l name 

and address f o r the record? 

A. Mona Bin i o n , L i t t l e t o n , Colorado. 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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Q. And by whom are you employed and i n what 

capacity? 

A. I'm employed by McElvain O i l and Gas P r o p e r t i e s , 

I n c . , who i s the sole general p a r t n e r of T.H. McElvain O i l 

and Gas Li m i t e d Partnership, who i s an i n t e r e s t owner i n 

t h i s p r o p e r t y t h a t ' s under the A p p l i c a t i o n — 

Q. And Ms. Binion — 

A. — i n my p o s i t i o n as land manager. 

Q. Have you p r e v i o u s l y t e s t i f i e d before t h i s 

D i v i s i o n and had your c r e d e n t i a l s as an expert i n petroleum 

land matters accepted and made a matter of p u b l i c record? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And are you f a m i l i a r w i t h the A p p l i c a t i o n t h a t 

has been f i l e d by McElvain i n t h i s case? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And are you f a m i l i a r w i t h the s t a t u s of the lands 

i n the s u b j e c t area? 

A. Yes. 

MR. FELDEWERT: Mr. Examiner, are the witness's 

q u a l i f i c a t i o n s acceptable? 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Any objection? 

MS. WALTA: No. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: So q u a l i f i e d . 

Q. (By Mr. Feldewert) Ms. Bi n i o n , would you please 

b r i e f l y s t a t e what McElvain seeks w i t h t h i s A p p l i c a t i o n ? 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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A. McElvain seeks an order p o o l i n g a l l m i n e r a l 

i n t e r e s t s from the base of the P i c t u r e d C l i f f s f o r m a t i o n t o 

the base of the Mesaverde formation, covering the east h a l f 

of Section 5 i n Township 25 North, Range 2 West, f o r a l l 

formations and pools developed on 320-acre spacing, t o be 

dedicated on McElvain's Cougar Com 5 Number 2 w e l l , t o be 

loca t e d a t a standard l o c a t i o n i n the southeast q u a r t e r of 

Section 5 a t approximately 1845 f e e t from the south l i n e 

and 1650 f e e t from the east l i n e . 

Q. Okay. Would you i d e n t i f y and review f o r the 

Examiner McElvain E x h i b i t Number 1? 

A. McElvain E x h i b i t Number 1 i s a p l a t t h a t 

represents on a t r a c t basis the ownership of the formations 

t h a t are included under t h i s A p p l i c a t i o n t h a t u n d e r l i e the 

east h a l f of Section 5. 

Q. And what's the st a t u s of the acreage i n the east 

h a l f of Section 5? I s i t f e d e r a l , fee or state? 

A. A l l the acreage i n the east h a l f of 5 i s f e d e r a l . 

Q. Okay, and does i t i d e n t i f y the ownership 

breakdown by lease? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And does McElvain, T.H. McElvain, L t d . , have an 

i n t e r e s t i n Lease USA NM-01806? 

A. Yes, they have an i n t e r e s t i n USA NM-01806 and 

NM-1804. 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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Q. Okay, and i s t h a t i n t e r e s t dependent a t a l l on 

the farmout agreement w i t h Noseco? 

A. No, i t ' s completely independent. I t was acquired 

under j u s t a cash a c q u i s i t i o n , and we have recor d t i t l e 

w i t h the BLM, operating r i g h t s t i t l e . 

Q. Okay. Would you i d e n t i f y and review f o r the 

Examiner McElvain E x h i b i t Number 2? 

A. McElvain E x h i b i t Number 2 i s a r e p r e s e n t a t i o n of 

a combined i n t e r e s t under the east h a l f of Section 5 f o r 

the formations t h a t are included i n t h i s A p p l i c a t i o n , and 

i t represents the s t a t u s of the commitment of each of the 

i n t e r e s t owners under t h a t spacing u n i t . 

Q. Okay, so t h i s shows the percentage ownership 

i n t e r e s t s i n the east h a l f of Section 5? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. And the p a r t i e s t h a t are l i s t e d as uncommitted, 

are those the p a r t i e s t h a t are subject t o the p o o l i n g 

A p p l i c a t i o n today? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Okay. Why don't you summarize f o r t h e Examiner 

your e f f o r t s t o o b t a i n v o l u n t a r y j o i n d e r of the i n t e r e s t 

owners t h a t are subject t o t h i s p o o l i n g A p p l i c a t i o n , 

beginning w i t h McElvain E x h i b i t Number 3? 

A. McElvain E x h i b i t Number 3 i s a l e t t e r dated A p r i l 

12th, 2001, which o r i g i n a l l y proposed the d r i l l i n g of the 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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Cougar Com 5 Number 2 w e l l , located i n the southeast 

q u a r t e r of Section 5. I t included an a u t h o r i z a t i o n f o r 

expenditure and e l e c t i o n page f o r p a r t i e s t o make t h e i r 

e l e c t i o n regarding p a r t i c i p a t i o n , i t included a breakdown 

of ownership t o the best of our knowledge a t t h a t p o i n t i n 

time from the t i t l e t h a t we had i n place a t t h a t time, and 

I t h i n k i t included an operating agreement also t h a t was 

o f f e r e d t o the p a r t i e s f o r j o i n d e r . 

Q. Okay, was t h i s your f i r s t contact l e t t e r ? 

A. That was the f i r s t contact l e t t e r t h a t we sent 

out, yes. 

Q. Okay, then why don't you t u r n t o McElvain E x h i b i t 

Number 4, i d e n t i f y t h a t f o r the Examiner, please? 

A. McElvain E x h i b i t Number 4 i s a subsequent l e t t e r 

t h a t was sent out on May 9th, 2 001, and i t was p r e d i c a t e d 

on the basis of new t i t l e ownership t h a t we had received, 

which created some of the p a r t i e s under the o r i g i n a l l e t t e r 

as not having an i n t e r e s t i n the p r o p e r t i e s a t a l l ; we had 

i n c o r r e c t t i t l e i n f o r m a t i o n . So we sent a r e v i s e d proposal 

out t h a t showed a c o r r e c t d i v i s i o n of ownership, which also 

i n c l u d e d the same a u t h o r i z a t i o n f o r expenditure, another 

copy of the operating agreement and a r e v i s e d d i v i s i o n of 

i n t e r e s t . 

Q. Has McElvain been able t o l o c a t e a l l the i n t e r e s t 

owners t h a t are shown on E x h i b i t Number 4? 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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A. The owners l i s t e d on E x h i b i t Number 4 t h a t have a 

working i n t e r e s t i n here have a l l been l o c a t e d , w i t h the 

exception of Mesa Grande Resources, Inc. We have t w i c e 

sent the m a t e r i a l s out t o t h e i r l o c a t i o n , and they've been 

re t u r n e d unrecieved. 

Q. Now, i s McElvain E x h i b i t Number 5 the r e t u r n 

r e c e i p t s f o r the c e r t i f i e d l e t t e r t h a t i s marked as E x h i b i t 

Number 4? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Okay. Now, as I f l i p p e d through here I d i d n ' t 

see a r e t u r n r e c e i p t f o r the Warren Clark T r u s t . Can you 

elabo r a t e on th a t ? 

A. Well, the Warren Clark Trust and the Testamentary 

T r u s t under the w i l l of Warren Clark are both i n t e r e s t 

owners t h a t were i n c o r r e c t l y shown on t h i s d i v i s i o n of 

i n t e r e s t . When we received t i t l e , we were provided a 

subsequent — i t was a t r a n s f e r e i t h e r under a q u i t c l a i m 

deed or an assignment where those two i n t e r e s t owners had 

assigned i n t o Clark and Oatman, a l i m i t e d p a r t n e r s h i p which 

i s c o n t r o l l e d by Carolyn Clark Oatman, who had handled the 

i n t e r e s t of a l l t h r e e of those p a r t i e s . So they were 

subsequently taken o f f of our l i s t . 

Q. And you sent out a c e r t i f i e d l e t t e r t o Carolyn 

Clark Oatman? 

A. That's r i g h t , and she d i d r e c e i v e i t , and she has 
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v o l u n t a r i l y committed her i n t e r e s t . 

Q. Okay. Now, you mentioned the i n a b i l i t y t o 

contact Mesa Grande Resources. There i s an address shown 

on the r e t u r n r e c e i p t f o r t h a t company. Have you been able 

t o contact Mesa Grande Resources i n the past a t t h a t Tulsa, 

Oklahoma, address? 

A. Yes, we have. 

Q. And i n t h i s case you were unable — they d i d not 

p i c k up t h e i r mail? 

A. I n t h i s case they d i d not p i c k up. Sometimes the 

ma i l i s picked up, and sometimes i t ' s not. 

Q. Now, Mesa Grande, L t d . , i s another p a r t y t h a t you 

show received your c e r t i f i e d l e t t e r ; i s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. Do you know the r e l a t i o n s h i p between Mesa Grande 

Resources and Mesa Grande, Ltd.? 

A. Not completely. I mean, the only t h i n g I know i s 

what I've been able t o determine of record and what I've 

been t o l d , you know, j u s t on a s i d e l i n e , and t h e r e are 

i n t e r e s t owners under the p a r t n e r s h i p of Mesa Grande, L t d . , 

who are also p r i n c i p a l s of some of these other companies. 

Mesa Grande Resources, I n c . , I t h i n k t h e r e was a p r i n c i p a l 

t h e r e t h a t i s also a p r i n c i p a l under the l i m i t e d 

p a r t n e r s h i p . I t h i n k t h a t ' s the only two connections. 

Q. Has the r e been any question r a i s e d about whether 
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Mesa Grande Resources s t i l l owns an i n t e r e s t i n t h i s 

property? 

A. We've received a q u i t c l a i m deed on — a copy of a 

q u i t c l a i m deed t h a t was f i l e d of record, from Mesa Grande 

Resources, I n c . , t h a t covers these p r o p e r t i e s , or a t l e a s t 

p o r t i o n s of these p r o p e r t i e s , so there's some question 

whether or not Mesa Grande Resources, I n c . , even has an 

i n t e r e s t i n these p r o p e r t i e s any longer. 

Q. Okay. Now, your E x h i b i t Number 4 l i s t s Cherokee 

Operating Company and Williams Production Company as a — 

you show them as a zero-percent i n t e r e s t owner. I d i d not 

see a r e t u r n r e c e i p t f o r those two companies. What i s the 

s t a t u s of t h a t — of Cherokee, do you know? 

A. Cherokee Operating Company was a mistake. They 

had p r e v i o u s l y owned an i n t e r e s t i n the p r o p e r t i e s but have 

subsequently assigned out t h e i r i n t e r e s t , and t h a t 

conveyance was missed when we had o r i g i n a l l y done the 

t i t l e . And I do b e l i e v e we d i d have a r e t u r n r e c e i p t from 

W i l l i a m s , though. 

Q. I t h i n k we do f o r n o t i c e of — purposes of t h i s 

hearing, but — 

A. No, I have i t here, i t ' s — 

Q. Okay, good. 

A. Yeah. So Williams d i d rece i v e the — And 

Williams i s shown there only f o r the f a c t t h a t they have a 
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p o t e n t i a l r e v e r s i o n a r y working i n t e r e s t t h a t , you know, 

we're unable t o determine i f the r e v e r s i o n has taken place 

or i f i t w i l l ever take place, so we have j u s t shown them 

on the ownership l i s t as a matter of course. 

Q. Okay. Now, f l i p p i n g back t o E x h i b i t Number 2, 

could you — What i s the c u r r e n t s t a t u s of your discussions 

w i t h the uncommitted i n t e r e s t owners t h a t are shown on 

McElvain E x h i b i t Number 2? 

A. The i n t e r e s t owners who we've been able t o 

communicate w i t h f o r the most p a r t have i n d i c a t e d t hey're 

i n t e r e s t e d i n v o l u n t a r i l y committing, w i t h the exception of 

A r r i b a Company, L t d . , who had o r i g i n a l l y s a i d they wanted 

t o commit and then changed t h e i r minds l a t e r . 

Gavilan Dome Properties we have not been able t o 

reach a t a l l , we don't have a way t o reach them. 

Mesa Grande Resources, we have not been able t o 

reach them. 

Mesa Grande, L t d . , has s a i d they would not commit 

t o anything. 

Neumann Family Trust and Noseco i s i n l i t i g a t i o n . 

We thought we would have a v o l u n t a r y commitment from them, 

but t h a t ' s under l i t i g a t i o n r i g h t now. 

Hooper, Kimball and Williams has v e r b a l l y 

committed t o a farmout. 

And Ibex Partnership and States and Petco have 
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v e r b a l l y committed t o a term assignment. 

And Williams Production has not responded a t a l l . 

Q. I n your o p i n i o n , Ms. Bi n i o n , have you made a good 

f a i t h e f f o r t t o o b t a i n v o l u n t a r y j o i n d e r of a l l the working 

i n t e r e s t owners i n the proposed u n i t ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. I s McElvain E x h i b i t Number 6 an a f f i d a v i t w i t h 

l e t t e r s g i v i n g n o t i c e of t h i s hearing? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Okay. Were E x h i b i t s 1 through 6 prepared by you 

or compiled under your d i r e c t i o n and supervision? 

A. Yes. 

MR. FELDEWERT: Mr. Examiner, a t t h i s time I move 

the admission i n t o evidence of McElvain E x h i b i t s 1 through 

6. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Objection? 

MS. WALTA: No. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: McElvain E x h i b i t s 1 through 6 

are admitted. 

MR. FELDEWERT: Mr. Examiner, t h a t concludes my 

examination of t h i s witness a t t h i s time. 

CRO S S-EXAMINATION 

3Y MS. WALTA: 

Q. Ms. Bin i o n , I n o t i c e on E x h i b i t Number 1, i f you 

could put t h a t i n f r o n t of you — 
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A. Uh-huh. 

Q. — t h a t McElvain i s showing an i n t e r e s t i n Lease 

Number 1806? 

A. Yes, ma'am. 

Q. Do you know when McElvain i t s i n t e r e s t i n t h a t 

lease? 

A. March, I bel i e v e — I have the assignment i n my 

f i l e , s i t t i n g back a t the c h a i r . I t h i n k i t was around 

March of t h i s year. 

Q. And from whom d i d McElvain acquire t h a t i n t e r e s t ? 

A. NM&O Operating Company. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: I'm so r r y , I d i d n ' t hear. 

THE WITNESS: I'm so r r y , NM&O Operating Company. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Thank you. 

Q. (By Ms. Walta) Do you know whether a t the time 

you acquired t h i s i n t e r e s t from NM&O Operating t h a t NM&O 

was the operator of any of t h i s p a r t i c u l a r property? 

A. I was aware t h a t there was an op e r a t i n g agreement 

under — t h a t covered the property as t o the Gavilan Mancos 

fo r m a t i o n only and t h a t NM&O was the operator named under 

t h a t o p e r a t i n g agreement, yes. 

Q. Okay, and how d i d you become aware of t h i s 

o p e r a t i n g agreement? 

A. Well, through i n q u i r y i n i t i a l l y , I had asked i f 

t h e r e was an operating agreement and what formations d i d i t 
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cover and who was subject t o i t , and I was informed 

v e r b a l l y of t h a t . 

Then I subsequently, when we entered i n t o an 

arrangement t o acquire the i n t e r e s t of NM&O, I conducted a 

due-diligence review of t h e i r f i l e s and secured copies of 

eve r y t h i n g t h a t was i n the f i l e s t h a t was c o n t r a c t u a l or 

otherwise t h a t r e l a t e d t o these p r o p e r t i e s , and the only 

t h i n g t h a t was represented i n the f i l e s was the same 

op e r a t i n g agreement t h a t I had been t o l d of v e r b a l l y , which 

covered only the Gavilan-Mancos formation. 

Q. Okay. Do you r e c a l l what the date of t h a t 

o p e r a t i n g agreement was? Do you have i t w i t h you? 

A. I t h i n k my counsel has a copy of i t . I don't 

know i f I have a copy of i t i n t h i s f i l e . I t h i n k i t was 

January of 198 6, maybe. Do you have t h a t ? 

MR. FELDEWERT: I f you know. 

THE WITNESS: I don't remember e x a c t l y the date, 

not o f f the top of my head. 

MS. WALTA: May I approach the witness? 

EXAMINER BROOKS: You may. 

MR. FELDEWERT: Can I see i t f i r s t ? 

Q. (By Ms. Walta) I'm going t o hand you what has 

been provided t o me by NM&O Operating Company and ask you 

i f t h a t i s a document t h a t you found i n the f i l e s of NM&O 

Operating when you d i d your due d i l i g e n c e , having acquired 
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an i n t e r e s t from NM&O i n Lease Number 1806? 

A. Okay, i f I could have a minute t o j u s t go through 

i t . 

Q. C e r t a i n l y , take your time. 

MR. FELDEWERT: Ms. Walta, are you r e p r e s e n t i n g 

t h a t t h a t was provided t o you by NM&O? 

MS. WALTA: Yes, a c t u a l l y I j u s t got i t today. 

MR. FELDEWERT: Okay. 

MS. WALTA: Or an i d e n t i c a l document today. 

MR. FELDEWERT: And do you have a copy t h a t we 

can mark as an e x h i b i t ? 

MS. WALTA: A c t u a l l y t h a t ' s the copy I brought t o 

mark as an e x h i b i t , so we can do t h a t . 

THE WITNESS: This i s not the o p e r a t i n g agreement 

t h a t I located i n t h e i r f i l e s , and when I i n q u i r e d and 

asked about i t , t h i s i s not the o p e r a t i n g agreement t h a t 

was described t o me, because t h i s covers more lands than 

j u s t the east h a l f of 5. 

MS. WALTA: Okay. 

THE WITNESS: The one t h a t I have covers j u s t the 

east h a l f of 5. 

MS. WALTA: A l l r i g h t . 

THE WITNESS: And i t also includes more p a r t i e s 

than j u s t what's l i s t e d on t h i s o p e r a t i n g agreement. 

Q. (By Ms. Walta) Okay. Could you i n t h a t 
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op e r a t i n g agreement t h a t i s before you f i n d what i s c a l l e d 

E x h i b i t AA? 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Excuse me j u s t a minute. For 

the purposes of the record, I t h i n k we should have t h i s 

o p e r a t i n g agreement marked as an e x h i b i t a t t h i s time. 

MS. WALTA: A l l r i g h t . Do you mark d i f f e r e n t l y 

f o r opposing p a r t y , or s h a l l we j u s t continue w i t h your 

e x h i b i t numbers? 

EXAMINER BROOKS: We normally have d i f f e r e n t 

number sequence f o r the opposing p a r t y . Mr. Feldewert, I 

see, has the stamp. 

MR. FELDEWERT: Why don't we mark t h i s E x h i b i t A? 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Yeah, we can mark i t as 

Noseco's E x h i b i t — 

MS. WALTA: — A. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: — A. 

MR. FELDEWERT: Do you have another copy of t h a t 

e x h i b i t , Ms. Walta? 

MS. WALTA: I don 1 1 have another copy, I'm 

a f r a i d , t h a t i s unmarked. 

MR. FELDEWERT: Then I ' l l stand over the 

witness — 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Okay. 

MS. WALTA: C e r t a i n l y . 

MR. FELDEWERT: — i f Ms. Bi n i o n does not mind. 
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EXAMINER BROOKS: I w i l l g ive you permission t o 

do t h a t i f Mrs. Binion does not mind. 

THE WITNESS: No problem. 

MS. WALTA: As long as you don't bend down and 

whisper i n her ear or answer a question. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Okay, you may proceed, Ms. 

Walta. 

Q. (By Ms. Walta) I wanted t o t u r n your a t t e n t i o n , 

Ms. Bi n i o n , t o what i s c a l l e d E x h i b i t AA — 

A. Okay. 

Q. — which i s a c t u a l l y e n t i t l e d a d i v i s i o n - o f -

i n t e r e s t e x h i b i t . This i n d i c a t e s t h a t the d i v i s i o n - o f -

i n t e r e s t e x h i b i t d e s c r i p t i o n covers Section 5, l e g a l 

d e s c r i p t i o n , which i s e v i d e n t l y the e q u i v a l e n t of the east 

h a l f of Section 5 and t h a t i t contains 32 0.20 acres, more 

or l e s s . Did you ever see a document such as t h i s when you 

were l o o k i n g through the f i l e s of NM&O i n your due 

di l i g e n c e ? 

MR. FELDEWERT: Are you t a l k i n g about the 

D i v i s i o n order? 

MS. WALTA: The D i v i s i o n order. 

THE WITNESS: Yes, I t h i n k I remember seeing a 

D i v i s i o n order i t s e l f , independent of any op e r a t i n g 

agreement. There was an O i l and Gas D i v i s i o n order i n 

t h e i r f i l e s t h a t covered the east h a l f . 
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Q. (By Ms. Walta) Do you remember whether i t was 

marked as an e x h i b i t , E x h i b i t AA? 

A. I t was not marked as an e x h i b i t , no. 

Q. Okay. You i n d i c a t e also on E x h i b i t 1 t h a t t h e r e 

i s a T.H. McElvain, L t d . , i n t e r e s t of 17.666670. When d i d 

McElvain acquire i t s i n t e r e s t i n Lease 1804? 

A. I t was the same a c q u i s i t i o n from NM&O Operating. 

We bought an i n t e r e s t i n both leases. 

Q. Okay, and I assume t h a t you were provided w i t h a 

f i l e of i n f o r m a t i o n per your request i n order f o r you t o 

perform due d i l i g e n c e w i t h respect t o t h a t i n t e r e s t as 

well ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Okay. 

A. I d i d i t a t the same time. 

Q. And I am assuming i f I ask you about t h i s 

o p e r a t i n g agreement and the D i v i s i o n order which i s 

attached t o i t , t h a t your answers would be the same — 

A. That's r i g h t — 

Q. — w i t h respect t o t h a t property? 

A. — because i t . was a l l a t the same time. 

MR. FELDEWERT: Make sure Ms. Walta f i n i s h e s her 

question before you answer. 

THE WITNESS: Did I answer i t too early? Sorry. 

Can you hear me? 
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Q. (By Ms. Walta) I be l i e v e t h a t you t e s t i f i e d t h a t 

you were shown an operating agreement by NM&O, what you 

understood covered only the Mancos fo r m a t i o n ; i s t h a t 

c o r r e c t ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Okay. Were you t o l d by NM&O t h a t t h a t was the 

only o p e r a t i n g agreement covering the p r o p e r t i e s or the 

leases i n which you were a c q u i r i n g an i n t e r e s t ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. You made reference t o a q u i t c l a i m , I b e l i e v e , 

t h a t you i n d i c a t e d covered the i n t e r e s t of Mesa Grande, 

L t d . ; i s t h a t correct? 

A. Mesa Grande Resources, Inc. 

Q. Mesa Grande Resources, Inc. 

A. Right, and I t h i n k i t may have incl u d e d Mesa 

Grande, L t d . , i n the document. 

Q. Okay, and t h a t q u i t c l a i m i s a recorded document? 

A. The copy t h a t I was provided was a recorded 

document, yes. 

Q. Okay. And the grantee of t h a t i n t e r e s t i s whom? 

A. The grantee under the document I was provided was 

Peter Neumann, I t h i n k as nominee or under some ca p a c i t y 

f o r the b e n e f i t of other p a r t i e s . 

MS. WALTA: I would l i k e t o move the admission of 

the E x h i b i t A. 
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MR. FELDEWERT: Mr. Examiner, I t h i n k I would 

o b j e c t on the grounds t h a t there's not a witness here t o 

t e s t i f y from where t h a t document came from, t o t e s t i f y t h a t 

t h a t i s a complete and accurate copy of the document t h a t 

e x i s t e d i n whatever f i l e i t came from, so I don't t h i n k 

t h a t the Commission i s i n any p o s i t i o n t o accept the 

document as presented. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Well, i n the present s t a t e of 

the record I'm going t o have t o , I t h i n k , s u s t a i n t h a t 

o b j e c t i o n . We may f i n d i t necessary t o continue t h i s 

hearing i n order t o get a u t h e n t i c a t i o n i f there's an issue, 

but I b e l i e v e t h a t based on the present record I must 

s u s t a i n the o b j e c t i o n . 

MS. WALTA: May I make a n i t - p i c k i n g p o i n t here? 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Do. 

MS. WALTA: That i s t h a t she d i d i d e n t i f y the 

d i v i s i o n - o f - i n t e r e s t p o r t i o n of t h a t document as a document 

t h a t she d i d review and see i n the f i l e s of the NM&O when 

she was completing her due d i l i g e n c e . 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Yes, I b e l i e v e the testimony, 

i f I r e c a l l c o r r e c t l y , was t h a t the de s i g n a t i o n " E x h i b i t " 

was not on the r e a t the time t h a t i t was — t h a t she 

examined i t , and — 

MS. WALTA: Well, she d i d n ' t know. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: — i f i t were o f f e r e d — a 
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D i v i s i o n order were o f f e r e d as a separate document, then I 

t h i n k t h a t i t could be admitted, but I don't b e l i e v e t h a t 

— w e l l , i n the present record t h a t the o p e r a t i n g agreement 

can be admitted. 

THE WITNESS: Well, the f a c t t h a t — i f I could 

j u s t make a comment, an O i l and Gas D i v i s i o n order i s a 

very, very, very uncommon t h i n g t o see attached t o an 

oper a t i n g agreement. So when you would see an O i l and Gas 

D i v i s i o n order i n a f i l e t h a t i s n ' t marked otherwise, 

t h a t ' s not unusual t o see, because t h a t ' s u s u a l l y the 

document t h a t , you know, production i s d i s t r i b u t e d under 

the basis o f . I t has nothing t o do w i t h an op e r a t i n g 

agreement because i t contains r o y a l t i e s and ov e r r i d e s t h a t 

are not subject t o operating agreements, and so i t ' s — 

EXAMINER BROOKS: I w i l l s u s t a i n the o b j e c t i o n a t 

t h i s p o i n t . 

You may continue, Mr. Feldewert — I'm s o r r y , Ms. 

Walta, i t ' s your — You're examining. 

MS. WALTA: I'm so r r y , I j u s t had one question. 

Q. (By Ms. Walta) Assuming t h a t you d i d see the 

D i v i s i o n order t h a t we were t a l k i n g about, i t does i n d i c a t e 

t h a t i t covers an area of 3 20 acres. Do you r e c a l l 

d i s c u s s i n g w i t h NM&O or having a discussion w i t h them as t o 

what acreage i t was t h a t was covered by t h a t p a r t i c u l a r O i l 

and Gas D i v i s i o n order? 
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A. I wouldn't have asked the question, I mean, 

because i t would have matched what I would have expected i t 

t o cover, because the Mancos formation i s on t h a t same 320-

acre spacing p a t t e r n , and the production from the Mancos 

fo r m a t i o n , which i s what the e x i s t i n g w e l l i s producing 

from, would have been a t t r i b u t e d t o t h a t same spacing u n i t , 

and so t h a t ' s what the O i l and Gas D i v i s i o n order would 

have covered f o r the Mancos formation. I wouldn't have had 

any reason t o question i t . 

Q. Okay. Did you do any checking of the i n t e r e s t s 

t h a t are set out on t h a t D i v i s i o n order and c o n f i r m t h e i r 

accuracy? 

A. I d i d look a t them t o confirm i f they matched, 

you know, what I was showing from the t i t l e check, and yes, 

I d i d . 

Q. And were they correct? 

A. No. Well, I can say they d i d n ' t match mine. 

Now, i f mine were i n c o r r e c t and those were c o r r e c t , I can't 

r e a l l y say, because I was not a p a r t y t o the documents t h a t 

created e i t h e r one. 

Q. Okay. Did you do any f u r t h e r due d i l i g e n c e t o 

determine whose i n t e r e s t s were c o r r e c t , yours, what you 

were seeing, or the i n t e r e s t s t h a t were shown on the 

D i v i s i o n order? 

A. I d i d f u r t h e r t i t l e review i n the county and the 
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BLM records and determined t h a t t h a t 1 s the way the BLM and 

the county r e f l e c t e d t i t l e , and t h a t ' s the t i t l e t h a t I 

accepted. 

Q. Are any of these leases f e d e r a l leases? 

A. A l l of the leases are f e d e r a l leases. 

Q. And d i d you also check the records of the BLM 

when you were doing your due d i l i g e n c e ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And you d i d not f i n d i n those records any — or 

d i d you f i n d i n those records any form of o p e r a t i n g 

agreement? 

A. Not i n the BLM records, no. 

Q. With respect t o the i n t e r e s t t h a t you acquired n 

the NM 18 04 lease, Ms. Binion, were th e r e any — d i d any 

questions a r i s e i n terms of the t i t l e t h a t NM&O was 

conveying t o you on t h a t p a r t i c u l a r lease? 

A. I ' d have t o go back and review my f i l e s t o f i g u r e 

out e x a c t l y , you know, whether or not th e r e was any 

question. C e r t a i n l y there were questions t h a t came up as I 

was reviewing the f i l e s , and the questions t h a t I had had 

been answered, otherwise I would not have acquired the 

p r o p e r t i e s . 

Q. Okay, so nothing comes t o mind r i g h t now, a t 

leas t ? 

A. Not f o r t h a t lease, not — no, no, i t doesn't. 
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MS. WALTA: I don't b e l i e v e I have any f u r t h e r 

questions regarding t i t l e . 

MR. FELDEWERT: Mr. Examiner, I have one. 

REDIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. FELDEWERT: 

Q. Ms. Binion — or a couple — the D i v i s i o n order 

t h a t you referenced seeing, i s t h a t f o r the Prowler Well 

Number 2 ? 

A. That's what i t i n d i c a t e s , yes, a t the top, i t 

says w e l l , Prowler Number 2. 

Q. And do you know whether Prowler Well Number 2 i s 

completed? 

A. The Prowler Number 2 i s completed and i s 

producing from the Gavilan-Mancos formation. 

Q. And the Gavilan-Mancos formation i s the for m a t i o n 

f o r which you saw a j o i n t o perating agreement t h a t was 

l i m i t e d t o t h a t p a r t i c u l a r formation? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

MR. FELDEWERT: Okay, t h a t ' s a l l I have. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Okay, which formations are you 

asking pooling? 

MR. FELDEWERT: Mesaverde. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Mesaverde — 

MR. FELDEWERT: I'm so r r y , from the — Let me be 

pre c i s e here. We're po o l i n g from the base of the P i c t u r e d 
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C l i f f s t o the base of the Mesaverde. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Okay. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: C l a r i f i c a t i o n . But you're 

asking f o r a 320-acre e a s t - h a l f d e d i c a t i o n , which would 

only include t h a t Mesaverde Pool; i s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

MR. FELDEWERT: Correct. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Okay. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Okay, you may c a l l your next 

witness. 

MR. FELDEWERT: C a l l Mr. John Steuble. 

JOHN D. STEUBLE, 

the witness h e r e i n , a f t e r having been f i r s t duly sworn upon 

h i s oath, was examined and t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s : 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. FELDEWERT: 

Q. Mr. Steuble, would you please s t a t e your f u l l 

name and address f o r the record? 

A. My name i s John Steuble, and I r e s i d e i n 

L i t t l e t o n , Colorado. 

Q. By whom are you employed and i n what capacity? 

A. I'm employed by McElvain O i l and Gas P r o p e r t i e s , 

I n c . , as the engineering manager. 

Q. And have you p r e v i o u s l y t e s t i f i e d before t h i s 

D i v i s i o n and had your c r e d e n t i a l s as a petroleum engineer 

accepted and made a matter of record? 
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A. Yes, I have. 

Q. Are you f a m i l i a r w i t h the A p p l i c a t i o n t h a t has 

been f i l e d by McElvain i n t h i s case? 

A. Yes, I am. 

Q. Have you conducted a study of the area which i s 

the s u b j e c t of t h i s A p p l i c a t i o n ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And are you prepared t o share the r e s u l t s of t h a t 

study w i t h the Examiner? 

A. Yes, I am. 

MR. FELDEWERT: Are the witness's q u a l i f i c a t i o n s 

acceptable? 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Any objection? 

MS. WALTA: No. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: So q u a l i f i e d . 

Q. (By Mr. Feldewert) Mr. Steuble, have you 

prepared e x h i b i t s f o r your p r e s e n t a t i o n i n t h i s case? 

A. Yes, I have. 

Q. Based on your study of the area, are you prepared 

t o make a recommendation t o the Examiner as t o the r i s k 

p e n a l t y t h a t should be assessed against nonconsenting 

i n t e r e s t owners? 

A. Yes, I have. 

Q. And what i s t h a t penalty? 

A. 2 00 percent. 
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Q. Okay, why don't you t u r n t o McElvain E x h i b i t 

Number 7, i d e n t i f y t h a t f o r the Examiner and e x p l a i n why 

t h a t supports your recommendation. 

A. E x h i b i t Number 7 i s a n i n e - s e c t i o n area around 

the proposed w e l l s i t e , and t h i s shows i s the immediate 

w e l l s — or w e l l s i n the immediate n i n e - s e c t i o n area. I 

have included on those t h a t are producing or have produced 

the i n i t i a l p o t e n t i a l on the upper number and the 

cumulative production as of 4-30-01 i n the lower number. 

There are two recent Mesaverde completions t h a t 

don't have — t h a t a t t h i s time t h i s was made are not on 

p i p e l i n e y e t , but they have been completed i n the 

Mesaverde. 

What t h i s does show i s t h a t — the sparse 

d r i l l i n g i n the area, and i t also shows t h a t the cumulative 

productions are somewhat small f o r a Mesaverde completion. 

Q. Has there been any water associated w i t h any of 

the w e l l s t h a t are shown on McElvain E x h i b i t Number 7? 

A. Yes, there has been. The w e l l i n the southeast 

of 33 has chronic water problems. The w e l l i n the — the 

recent completion i n the northwest of 4 has a l o t of water 

t h a t we're t r y i n g — since our completion i n the Mesaverde, 

we have t o go back and t r y t o i s o l a t e the water p r o d u c t i o n 

i n t h a t . 

Q. How would you c h a r a c t e r i z e the cumulative 
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p r o d u c t i o n from the w e l l s t h a t you show on t h i s map? 

A. There seem t o be sweet spots, but t h i s p a r t i c u l a r 

map, these are not what I would c a l l e x c e p t i o n a l w e l l s . 

They're probably b e t t e r than marginal w e l l s , but they are 

w e l l s t h a t w i l l produce some gas over time. 

Q. I s t h e r e any w e l l s t h a t you would c l a s s i f y as a 

poor w e l l on t h i s map? 

A. Yes, the w e l l i n the northwest of 4, the recent 

completion, i s a poor w e l l , cind the w e l l i n the northwest 

of 3 3 can also be considered a poor w e l l . 

Q. And those are w e l l s i n which you're stepping out 

t o the west from the e x i s t i n g producing area? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. And i s t h a t what you're doing w i t h t h i s 

p a r t i c u l a r w e ll? 

A. Yes, t h a t ' s c o r r e c t . 

Q. Would you t u r n t o McElvain E x h i b i t Number 8, 

i d e n t i f y t h a t — 

A. E x h i b i t Number 8 i s j u s t a l a r g e r area. I t shows 

the same i n f o r m a t i o n , but i t covers a l a r g e r geographical 

area, and again what i t mainly shows i s the lack of 

c o n s i s t e n t d r i l l i n g i n the immediate area of the w e l l and 

our stepping out t o the west as we develop the f i e l d . 

I might add, i n Section 1 of 25-3 i s a w e l l we 

t r i e d t o recomplete a number of years ago i n the Mesaverde, 
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and i t was never a commercial w e l l . 

Q. So you're moving towards a bad well? 

A. Yes, we are. 

Q. Okay. Do you b e l i e v e there's a chance t h a t you 

could d r i l l a w e l l a t the proposed l o c a t i o n t h a t would not 

be a commercial success? 

A. Yes, I do. 

Q. Would you please f o r me t u r n t o McElvain E x h i b i t 

Number 4, and attached t o t h a t there i s an AFE. 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. For the record, t h i s i s a l e t t e r t h a t went out t o 

a l l t he i n t e r e s t owners f o r which we're seeking a p o o l i n g 

order today. 

Has McElvain d r i l l e d other Mesaverde w e l l s i n the 

immediate area? 

A. Yes, we have. 

Q. And are the costs r e f l e c t e d on t h i s AFE i n l i n e 

w i t h what has been in c u r r e d by McElvain f o r the d r i l l i n g of 

these wells? 

A. Yes. I might add t h a t we d i d t h i s AFE back i n 

March. Since t h a t time we've had numerous p r i c e increases 

s p e c i f i c a l l y on r i g p r i c e s , b i t p r i c e s and t h i n g s l i k e 

t h a t , so I would consider t h i s somewhat low a t t h i s 

p a r t i c u l a r time. 

Q. Have you made; an estimate of the overhead and 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
(505) 989-9317 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

37 

a d m i n i s t r a t i v e costs w h i l e d r i l l i n g t h i s w e l l and also 

w h i l e producing i t , i f i t i s a successful w e l l ? 

A. Yes, I have. 

Q. And what are those estimates? 

A. My estimates are $600 per month f o r a producing 

w e l l and $6000 per month f o r a d r i l l i n g w e l l . 

Q. Are these overhead r a t e s c o n s i s t e n t w i t h what 

have been charged f o r other w e l l s i n the area? 

A. Yes, they are. 

Q. Are you aware — Has there been a recent order 

entered by the D i v i s i o n awarding t h i s l e v e l of 

a d m i n i s t r a t i v e and overhead costs? 

A. Yes, t h i s was awarded on Order Number R-ll,657 

f o r a Dakota w e l l i n Section 11 on September 18th of 2001. 

Q. And do you recommend t h a t these f i g u r e s be 

inco r p o r a t e d i n t o any order t h a t r e s u l t s from t h i s hearing? 

A. Yes, I do. 

Q. And do you request t h a t these r a t e s be adjusted 

annually pursuant t o the Section 3.1.A.3 of the COPAS form 

e n t i t l e d "Accounting Procedure - J o i n t Operations"? 

A. Yes, I do. 

Q. Does McElvain O i l and Gas P r o p e r t i e s , I n c . , seek 

t o be designated operated of the proposed w e l l ? 

A. Yes, we do. 

Q. And i n your opinion, Mr. Steuble, w i l l the 
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g r a n t i n g of t h i s A p p l i c a t i o n be i n the best i n t e r e s t s of 

conservation, the prevention of waste and the p r o t e c t i o n of 

c o r r e l a t i v e r i g h t s ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Were McElvain E x h i b i t s 7 and 8 prepared by you or 

compiled under your d i r e c t i o n and supervision? 

A. Yes, they were. 

MR. FELDEWERT: Mr. Examiner, a t t h i s time I 

would move the admission i n t o evidence of McElvain E x h i b i t s 

Numbers 7 and 8. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Objection? 

MS. WALTA: (Shakes head) 

EXAMINER BROOKS: McElvain 7 and 8 are admitted. 

MR. FELDEWERT: And t h a t concludes my 

examination of t h i s witness a t t h i s time. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Ms. Walta? 

CROSS-EXAMINATION 

BY MS. WALTA: 

Q. Mr. Steuble, d i d you do any a n a l y s i s or 

computation of the p e r i o d of payout f o r n o n p a r t i c i p a t i n g 

owners? 

A. For n o n p a r t i c i p a t i n g owners? 

Q. Owners i n t h i s well? 

A. No, I have not. 

Q. Did you do any an a l y s i s or computation of the 
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payout p e r i o d f o r McElvain f o r i t s d r i l l i n g and completion 

costs i n the well? 

A. Yes, I do reserve estimates on a company-wide 

basis t w i c e a year and numerous times i n between those two 

times a year. But yes, I have done the economic 

c a l c u l a t i o n s . 

Q. What d i d you conclude would be the payout p e r i o d 

f o r McElvain's d r i l l i n g and completion costs on t h i s w e l l ? 

MR. FELDEWERT: Mr. Examiner, I would — I would 

o b j e c t t o the form of the question. I am concerned t h a t we 

are g e t t i n g i n t o an area t h a t i s — comprises p r o p r i e t a r y 

commercial i n f o r m a t i o n . McElvain's payout i n t h i s e x i s t i n g 

w e l l would not be, i n any event, a t issue i n t h i s p o o l i n g 

proceeding, and I don't see why we need t o get i n t o 

c o n f i d e n t i a l reserve estimates or payout c a l c u l a t i o n s t h a t 

would have been studie d , paid f o r and examined by McElvain. 

MS. WALTA: Okay, I guess I understood t h a t we 

were concerned i n these proceedings w i t h economic waste as 

w e l l as waste of resources, and I'm going t o discuss i n a 

few moments here w i t h Mr. Steuble, I hope, another proposal 

t h a t was made f o r f u r t h e r development of these p r o p e r t i e s , 

and I t h i n k t h a t i t ' s c e r t a i n l y p e r t i n e n t t o the d i s c u s s i o n 

what the r e l a t i v e economic considerations are of the 

v a r i o u s a l t e r n a t i v e s t h a t are a v a i l a b l e f o r f u r t h e r t e s t i n g 

and development of the Mesaverde formation i n t h i s 3 2 0-acre 
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area. 

MR. FELDEWERT: Mr. Brooks, I'm not aware of any 

other pending proposal, e i t h e r before t h i s D i v i s i o n or t h a t 

has been presented by any p a r t y t h a t would be e n t i t l e d t o 

present a proposal. So I'm not sure what Ms. Walta i s 

t a l k i n g about when she says she has a competing proposal. 

C e r t a i n l y there's no competing proposal before t h i s 

D i v i s i o n against which t o compare — no competing p o o l i n g 

a p p l i c a t i o n against which t o compare McElvain's proposal i n 

t h i s case. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Well, I t h i n k t h a t ' s a c o r r e c t 

observation. However, I t h i n k the estimated payout i s 

probably r e l e v a n t t o the issue of the r i s k p e n a l t y , which 

i s s t i l l something we consider i n these proceedings, so 

I ' l l o v e r r u l e the o b j e c t i o n . 

THE WITNESS: A f t e r a l l of t h a t i t ' s u n f o r t u n a t e , 

because I d i d n ' t b r i n g any of t h a t w i t h me. And q u i t e 

f r a n k l y , I would be very uncomfortable i n t r y i n g t o r e c a l l 

i t from memory because I do so many throughout the year. 

Q. (By Ms. Walta) So the answer i s , you don't know 

r i g h t now? 

A. No, the answer i s , I know, I j u s t don't have i t 

w i t h me. 

Q. You need something t o r e f r e s h your memory as t o 

the answer? 
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A. Yes. Well, what I ' d need i s the economic run 

t h a t I've done on t h i s p a r t i c u l a r p r o p e r t y . 

Q. You i n d i c a t e d — Well, l e t me ask you, do you 

r e c a l l what the d r i l l i n g cost per f o o t i s under your 

proposal? 

A. No, but i f I can get my c a l c u l a t o r I can f i g u r e 

i t out. 

Q. Okay, why don't you do t h a t ? 

A. At the time I d i d t h a t , t h i s p a r t i c u l a r w e l l , I 

used $23 per f o o t f o r d r i l l i n g cost. 

Q. Now, your testimony as I understood i t was t h a t 

t h i s cost, the cost of t h i s w e l l , was i n l i n e w i t h the cost 

of other w e l l s t h a t McElvain has d r i l l e d and completed i n 

the area; i s t h a t correct? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. Okay. How does i t compare t o the d r i l l i n g cost 

of other operators and other operations i n the area? 

A. Well, q u i t e f r a n k l y , t here are no other operators 

or operations i n t h i s immediate area other than McElvain, 

so I guess i t compares favorable. 

Q. You're saying there are no other operators of 

Mesaverde p r o p e r t i e s i n the •— 

A. Not a c t i v - --

Q. — immediate area, other than McElvain? 

A. Not a c t i v e l y d r i l l i n g , no. 
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Q. Okay. Are there any other w e l l s t h a t are d r i l l e d 

i n t o any of the conventional gas-producing formations i n 

the area? 

A. I n t h i s immediate area? 

Q. I n the immediate area? 

A. No, ma'am. 

Q. So what your testimony i s , t h a t t h e r e are no 

other t h i r d - p a r t y operators by which a comparison could be 

made as t o the r e l a t i v e d r i l l i n g costs; i s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A. I f you were going t o compare them t o another 

operator, t h a t ' s c o r r e c t . 

Q. Okay. I s the same t r u e f o r your 

overhead/administrative costs t h a t you're proposing? 

A. No, I don't t h i n k the same i s t r u e t h e r e , because 

we are pa r t n e r s w i t h many companies i n the San Juan Basin, 

and our costs are i n l i n e , i f not somewhat cheaper, than 

the other operators t h a t charge us overhead. 

Q. I n the area? 

A. I n the San Juan Basin. You have t o r e a l i z e t h a t 

we are t a l k i n g about a very s p e c i f i c southeastern f l a n k of 

the Basin t h a t nobody has d r i l l e d much i n except P i c t u r e d 

C l i f f w e l l s , and those were d r i l l e d 10 t o 15 years ago, so 

there's not been a l o t of d r i l l i n g a c t i v i t y i n t h i s area. 

I t h i n k some of these other w e l l s were d r i l l e d i n 

the mid-1980s, maybe, I'm t r y i n g t o r e c a l l from memory. 
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But i n t h i s immediate area, t h a t i s — I mean, we're i t . 

Now, concerning overhead r a t e s , overhead r a t e s 

p e r t a i n t o every w e l l i n the San Juan Basin. And what I'm 

t e l l i n g you i s , our costs are i n l i n e or somewhat lower 

than other operators w i t h i n the San Juan Basin, and t h a t i s 

a l a r g e geographical area. 

Q. So the w e l l s i n t h i s immediate area tend t o be 

more shallow w e l l s i n t o the P i c t u r e d C l i f f s ; i s t h a t 

c o r r e c t ? 

A. Well, there's a l o t of P i c t u r e d C l i f f w e l l s t o 

the south of us. There are some w e l l s t o the west of us 

t h a t penetrate the deeper formations. 

Q. Okay. Now, as I understood Ms. Binion's 

testimony, there i s a w e l l i n t o the Mancos for m a t i o n 

somewhere i n the v i c i n i t y of your proposed w e l l ; i s t h a t 

c o r r e c t ? 

A. I n the same spacing u n i t ? 

Q. Well — 

A. I n the east h a l f ? 

Q. I n the east h a l f --

A. Yes — 

Q. — of Section 5. 

A. — there i s a w e l l t h e r e . 

Q. Okay, and the Mancos formation would be a deep 

formation? 
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A. Yes. I t ' s deeper than the Mesaverde. 

Q. Okay, so i t would l i e below the Mesaverde? 

A. Uh-huh. 

Q. And i n a c q u i r i n g i t s i n t e r e s t s i n the east h a l f 

of Section 5, d i d McElvain acquire any ownership i n t e r e s t s 

i n t he e x i s t i n g w e l l d r i l l e d i n t o the Mancos formation? 

A. Being an engineer, I don't t h i n k I can answer 

t h a t . I don't know. 

Q. You don't know. 

A. I don't know. 

MS. WALTA: Okay. Could we mark t h i s , Michael, 

as — May I approach the witness? 

EXAMINER BROOKS: You may. 

(Off the record) 

Q. (By Ms. Walta) Okay, I'm going t o hand you 

what's been marked as E x h i b i t B and ask you as the engineer 

f o r McElvain whether you have ever seen t h a t document 

before. 

MR. FELDEWERT: Do you have another copy? 

MS. WALTA: I don't b e l i e v e so. Do you have t h a t 

l e t t e r ? 

THE WITNESS: Yes, I've seen i t l a s t n i g h t . 

Q. (By Ms. Walta) That's the f i r s t time you've seen 

i t ? 

A. That's the f i r s t time I've seen i t . 
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Q. Okay. What i s the date of t h a t l e t t e r ? 

A. August 14th, 2001. 

Q. Okay. And can you t e l l you t e l l from l o o k i n g a t 

t h a t l e t t e r whether i t was sent t o McElvain? 

A. I t says, see attached address l i s t . 

Q. Okay, could you look a t the address l i s t ? 

A. I t says i t was. 

Q. Okay, what i s t h a t l e t t e r ? 

A. That's a l e t t e r sent out by Mr. Richard Altman 

from the company Richard Altman and Company, lo c a t e d i n 

Denver, Colorado, proposing t o recomplete the Prowler 

Number 2 w e l l , which i s the w e l l i n the Gavilan-Mancos, 

i n t o the Mesaverde formation. And i t also has an a u t h o r i t y 

f o r expenditure attached t o i t and an e l e c t i o n page t o 

rework the w e l l . 

Q. Okay. And even though the date on t h a t i s August 

14th, your testimony i s you d i d not see t h a t u n t i l l a s t 

evening, I believe? 

A. That's my testimony. 

Q. Okay. Do you know whether t h a t document i s a 

document t h a t was received by McElvain? How d i d you happen 

t o see i t l a s t evening? 

A. I seen i t as we were going over testimony f o r the 

hearing. 

Q. Okay, was i t your understanding t h a t t h a t 
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document i s i n the f i l e s and records of McElvain? 

MR. FELDEWERT: We submit t h a t t h a t document was 

received by McElvain. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Okay. 

MS. WALTA: A l l r i g h t . I would l i k e t o move the 

admission of t h i s document. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: I s t h i s marked as E x h i b i t B? 

MS. WALTA: B, I ' d l i k e t o move the admission of 

E x h i b i t B. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Objections? 

MR. FELDEWERT: Other than relevancy I have no 

o b j e c t i o n . 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Okay. Well, Noseco•s E x h i b i t B 

i s admitted. 

Q. (By Ms. Walta) Mr. Steuble, what i s the — Let 

me s t r i k e t h a t . 

When you were contemplating doing something i n 

the east h a l f of Section 5 i n terms of f u r t h e r developing 

the p r o p e r t y , d i d McElvain give any c o n s i d e r a t i o n t o 

perhaps r e - e n t e r i n g the e x i s t i n g w e l l i n t o the Mancos and 

t e s t i n g the Mesaverde and doing some s o r t of recompletion? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Okay. And what was the r e s u l t s of your 

c o n s i d e r a t i o n of t h a t p o s s i b i l i t y ? 

A. From an engineering perspective, not being h e l d 
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t o what I'm going t o say about the land issues, okay? 

Q. Okay. 

A. F i r s t o f f , we. don't operate the w e l l . 

Second o f f , there's a large l e a r n i n g curve on how 

t o complete the Mesaverde i n t h i s area, so we want t o 

operate the w e l l s because we f e e l we have progressed on 

t h a t l e a r n i n g curve, where somebody else wouldn't. 

And t h i r d , I don't b e l i e v e , when we t a l k e d about 

i t , t h a t we have any c o n t r a c t u a l agreements t h a t we could 

go i n and recomplete the w e l l . I b e l i e v e the — and again, 

t h i s i s not me examining the f i l e s but me being i n meetings 

— the ope r a t i n g agreement we had on t h a t w e l l , okay, was 

l i m i t e d t o the Gavilan-Mancos, and t h a t took 100-percent 

concurrence t o move up. 

Well, because we're not operators — and a t t h a t 

time I don't know i f we even had an i n t e r e s t i n the w e l l . 

I don't — Today I don't know i f we have an i n t e r e s t . But 

we looked a t i t and dismissed t h a t as an u n a t t a i n a b l e goal. 

The other goal i s t o d r i l l the w e l l . 

Q. You do agree, or perhaps t h i s i s ou t s i d e your 

area of e x p e r t i s e , you do agree, do you not, t h a t as a 

working i n t e r e s t owner i n the pro p e r t y , you could have made 

a proposal f o r a p r o j e c t which would have i n v o l v e d the 

t e s t i n g and recompletion uphole of the Mesaverde? 

MR. FELDEWERT: I ' l l o b j e c t , Mr. Steuble i s an 
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engineer; he's not an atto r n e y , he's not a landman. I 

don't — I t h i n k i t would be nothing but s p e c u l a t i o n . 

MS. WALTA: Okay, are you able t o — 

EXAMINER BROOKS: I would s u s t a i n t h a t o b j e c t i o n 

because I don't b e l i e v e t h a t the q u a l i f i c a t i o n s w i t h which 

he's been admitted as an expert would extend t o expressing 

an o p i n i o n on the r i g h t s of a working i n t e r e s t owner. 

Q. (By Ms. Walta) Okay. Well, l e t me ask you t h i s , 

because i t sounds as i f you can answer t h i s q uestion. I s 

your testimony t h a t the primary reason t h a t McElvain d i d 

not consider a p r o j e c t of uphole completion i n the e x i s t i n g 

Prowler w e l l was because McElvain could not operate t h a t 

w e l l ? 

A. Could you rephrase — ask me t h a t again? 

Q. Okay, i f I understand your testimony, i t i s t h a t 

the primary reason t h a t McElvain d i d not consider an uphole 

completion and t e s t i n g of the Mesaverde fo r m a t i o n i n the 

e x i s t i n g Prowler w e l l i s because i t would not be able t o be 

the operator of the well? 

A. No, ma'am, I said t h a t was a c o n s i d e r a t i o n . 

Q. Were there any considerations t h a t r e l a t e d t o any 

of the engineering or reserve f a c t o r s t h a t one considers i n 

developing a property? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And what were those? 
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A. The f i r s t one t h a t comes t o mind i s , we don't 

know i f there's cement across the Mesaverde zone. We don't 

know how t h i s was cemented. Anytime you enter an o l d 

w e l l b o r e you're p u t t i n g y o u r s e l f a t r i s k t o lose the 

w e l l b o r e . From an engineering perspective, i t ' s much 

easier t o work w i t h new pipe and new cement and have a 

b e t t e r chance of success, making a p o s i t i v e completion on a 

w e l l , r a t h e r than r e - e n t e r i n g the w e l l b o r e . Yes, t h a t ' s a 

c o n s i d e r a t i o n . 

The other c o n s i d e r a t i o n i s how long i t ' s going t o 

take t o put everybody -- t o get a l l the p a r t i e s t o agree. 

And when we're t r y i n g t o develop a f i e l d here, i f we know 

— I ' l l shut up. 

MR. FELDEWERT: No, I — 

THE WITNESS: Huh? 

MR. FELDEWERT: No, t h a t was — 

THE WITNESS: No, I'm l o s i n g my temper here, 

so. . . 

Q. (By Ms. Walta) So time was a f a c t o r ? 

A. Time was a f a c t o r . 

Q. Okay. 

A. But what age i s the pipe? Who bought the pipe? 

What grade i s the pipe? I s the pipe cemented? I don't 

know. Those a l l cost money t o go f i n d out. 

Q. Did you make i n q u i r y of NM&O, the operator a t the 
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time, t o t r y t o a s c e r t a i n the answers t o any of those 

questions? 

A. I b e l i e v e we went t o the f i l e s i n Aztec and dug 

out as much i n f o r m a t i o n as we could, and we looked a t t h a t . 

Q. And d i d you f i n d any i n f o r m a t i o n i n those 

f i l e s — 

A. Yes. 

Q. — t h a t caused you t o conclude t h a t t h e r e may be 

some s o r t of d r i l l i n g or production-type problems t h a t 

would prevent the r e - e n t r y and t e s t i n g and recompletion of 

the Mesaverde formation i n the e x i s t i n g wellbore? 

A. I ' l l g i ve you an example t h a t maybe you can 

understand. And o l d w e l l , there's always r i s k of l o s i n g 

the e n t i r e w e l l . Anytime you re-enter an o l d w e l l , there's 

an unknown r i s k out there because you don't have good, 

accurate records of what the pipe was. Was i t used pipe, 

was i t new pipe? A l l these t h i n g s get l o s t . And I'm very 

r e l u c t a n t t o go i n t o any w e l l , any o l d w e l l , and t r y t o 

make a recompletion. 

So yes, there's engineering c o n s i d e r a t i o n s , and 

yes, we went t o the records i n Aztec and looked. But t h a t 

being an o l d w e l l , combined w i t h — i t ' s c u r r e n t l y a 

producing w e l l . We t a l k e d t o NM&O, and I b e l i e v e they t o l d 

us i t was an economic w e l l . So are you going t o s a c r i f i c e 

t h e e x i s t i n g production and have 100 percent of the working 
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i n t e r e s t s a c r i f i c e what, they have now f o r something t h a t 

they may get? I don't know. Yeah, we considered a l l t h a t . 

Q. Did you determine f o r y o u r s e l f whether the w e l l 

was an economic well? Or d i d you simply ask NM&O and — 

A. No, I t h i n k I ran a de c l i n e curve on i t . 

Q. Did you look a t any of the c u r r e n t p r o d u c t i o n 

f i g u r e s f o r any p e r i o d of time? 

A. Well, a l l we have access t o i s what's on the 

D w i g h t ' s and ONGARD, so we went and dug out whatever has 

been r e p o r t e d up u n t i l the time I looked a t i t , yes. 

Q. And d i d you get any i n f o r m a t i o n from NM&O about 

i t s o p e r a t i n g costs on t h a t property? 

A. I can't remember i f we d i d or not. 

Q. Did you get any i n f o r m a t i o n from NM&O about the 

sales and revenues from the production from t h a t p r o j e c t ? 

A. No, I know I d i d n ' t get t h a t . 

Q. But you do agree t h a t i n order t o know whether i t 

was economic you would have t o know what they were able t o 

s e l l the production f o r and what the o f f s e t t i n g o p e r a t i o n a l 

costs were? I n other words, you would need t o know whether 

the p r o d u c t i o n was t u r n i n g a p r o f i t , wouldn't you? 

A. Not ne c e s s a r i l y , but — I mean, we knew what ours 

cost. 

Q. Did you consider any other a l t e r n a t i v e s f o r 

developing the property, other than the proposal which i s 
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the s u b j e c t of the pending A p p l i c a t i o n ? 

A. I guess I don't know. I would say no. I don't 

understand the question. 

Q. As I understand i t , the d r i l l i n g of the w e l l t h a t 

i s c u r r e n t l y proposed, i s t h a t m u d - d r i l l i n g or i s i t a i r -

d r i l l i n g ? 

A. This i s a i r - d r i l l i n g . 

Q. Okay. I s there any s i g n i f i c a n t cost d i f f e r e n t i a l 

between m u d - d r i l l i n g and a i r - d r i l l i n g ? 

A. T y p i c a l l y m u d - d r i l l i n g i s more expensive. 

Q. So i f you were m u d - d r i l l i n g , the AFE cost would 

be hig h e r ; i s t h a t correct? 

A. Yes, I be l i e v e so. 

Q. When you were, considering the p o s s i b i l i t y of r e ­

e n t e r i n g and recompleting the Prowler i n t o the Mesaverde, 

d i d you come up w i t h any costs r e l a t e d t o t h a t p r o j e c t ? 

A. Yes, I looked a t them. 

Q. Okay, and do you r e c a l l what your costs were? 

A. My costs were about h a l f of what i t would cost t o 

d r i l l a new w e l l , approximately. 

Q. Half of the cost of — 

A. Of your new w e l l . 

Q. — your proposed w e l l now? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Okay. And d i d you — When you reviewed t he 
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document t h a t i s E x h i b i t B, d i d you note the proposed 

costs — 

A. Yes, ma'am, I d i d . 

Q. — of the p r o j e c t ? And what are they? 

A. What are they? 

Q. Yes. 

A. They're $117,000 t o t a l cost. 

Q. I s there anything t h a t you see on t h a t AFE which 

you b e l i e v e i s not r e a l i s t i c i n terms of the proposed cost 

f o r t h a t r e t e s t i n g and recompletion? 

MR. FELDEWERT: Mr. Examiner, I'm going t o a t 

t h i s p o i n t o b j e c t . We've been going on f o r about 15 

minutes on a proposal, what Ms. Walta terms a competing 

proposal, t h a t i s not before the D i v i s i o n . I t ' s not been, 

t o my knowledge, presented t o any of the p a r t i e s i n a 

proper f a s h i o n , so I guess I question how long we're going 

t o continue t o compare McElvain's p o o l i n g A p p l i c a t i o n w i t h 

a proposal t h a t i s not p r o p e r l y before the D i v i s i o n . 

MS. WALTA: Well, i t ' s only not p r o p e r l y before 

the D i v i s i o n i f i t i s a proposal t h a t needs t o be before 

the D i v i s i o n . I f i t i s a proposal t h a t i s made pursuant t o 

the terms of an e x i s t i n g operating agreement, I don't 

b e l i e v e t h a t i t needs t o be submitted t o the D i v i s i o n f o r 

approval; i t simply needs t o be submitted t o the working 

i n t e r e s t owners i n conformity w i t h the terms of the 
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op e r a t i n g agreement, and the terms of the o p e r a t i n g 

agreement would determine what s o r t of approval needed t o 

be had, and i t also would determine the c o n d i t i o n s under 

which the p r o j e c t would go forward. 

So i t k i n d of assumes t h a t t h i s o p e r a t i n g 

agreement i s not i n place, and I don't t h i n k we've got any 

de c i s i o n about t h a t — 

MR. FELDEWERT: Well, I would — 

MS. WALTA: — but i t c e r t a i n l y e x i s t s . 

MR. FELDEWERT: Well, I would s t a t e t h a t i t 

assumes t h a t t h e r e i s an operating agreement t h a t i s i n 

place, and there's a b s o l u t e l y no evidence i n the record t o 

i n d i c a t e t h a t there's an operating agreement t h a t covers 

the Mesaverde formation i n the east h a l f of Section 5. I n 

f a c t , the testimony i s j u s t the opposite. 

So i f we don't have a v o l u n t a r y agreement, the 

only proposal — the only o p t i o n a v a i l a b l e i s p o o l i n g , and 

the only p o o l i n g A p p l i c a t i o n before the D i v i s i o n i s the one 

t h a t McElvain has. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: I be l i e v e t h a t ' s c o r r e c t , and I 

also b e l i e v e t h a t i f there i s an operating agreement, i f 

there's a proposal under an operating agreement, there's 

nothing the D i v i s i o n needs t o be concerned w i t h , so I w i l l 

s u s t a i n the o b j e c t i o n . 

MS. WALTA: I do not have any f u r t h e r questions. 
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EXAMINER BROOKS: Mr. Feldewert? 

MR. FELDEWERT: I have no questions. 

EXAMINATION 

BY EXAMINER BROOKS: 

Q. I s t h i s — I've been asking everybody pool names 

today. I s t h i s j u s t Basin-Mesaverde, j u s t l i k e Basin-

Dakota or — 

A. No, i t ' s Blanco-Mesaverde. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Blanco-Mesaverde, okay. I 

thought I ' d heard t h a t name somewhere, but then I thought 

maybe I was saying i t wrong. 

Okay, I don't b e l i e v e I have any f u r t h e r 

questions of t h i s witness. You may step down, unless you 

have some questions, Mr. Stogner? 

EXAMINER STOGNER: (Shakes head) 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Okay, you may stand down. 

MR. FELDEWERT: Mr.. Examiner, t h a t concludes our 

pr e s e n t a t i o n . 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Okay, Ms. Walta? 

MS. WALTA: Okay, I j u s t w i l l c a l l Mr. Hansen f o r 

the purpose of i d e n t i f y i n g the operating agreement — 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Okay. 

MS. WALTA: — t h a t we've been t a l k i n g about, 

t h a t we don't seem t o have i n the record, y e t . 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Okay, Mr. Hansen has not been 
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sworn, so — 

MS. WALTA: Okay. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: — w i l l you s t a t e your name f o r 

the r e c o r d , please? 

MR. HANSEN: Harold M. Hansen, H-a-n-s-e-n. 

(Thereupon, the witness was sworn.) 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Okay, i f y o u ' l l take the 

witness stand, please. 

MS. WALTA: What happened t o the e x h i b i t s ? 

EXAMINER BROOKS: I be l i e v e — Do you have them, 

Mr. Feldewert, t h e r e on your table? 

MR. FELDEWERT: Oh, I'm s o r r y . 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Last witness took i t . Well, 

I'm reasonably c e r t a i n i t hasn't l e f t the room. 

MR. FELDEWERT: I have an e x t r a set. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: We were t a l k i n g about the 

Noseco E x h i b i t A. 

MR. FELDEWERT: And I have the copy of the 

ope r a t i n g agreement. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Of which t h e r e i s only one 

copy, okay. 

MR. FELDEWERT: Correct. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Okay. 

MR. FELDEWERT: With your permission, may I also 

f o l l o w along — 
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EXAMINER BROOKS: You may. 

MR. FELDEWERT: — as the questions are asked? 

Thank you. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: You may proceed, Ms. Walta. 

MS. WALTA: Thank you. 

HAROLD M. HANSEN, 

the witness h e r e i n , a f t e r having been f i r s t d u l y sworn upon 

h i s oath, was examined and t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s : 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MS. WALTA: 

Q. Mr. Hansen, would you s t a t e your f u l l name and 

address f o r the record, please? 

A. Harold M. Hansen, 7400 Lakeside D r i v e , t h a t ' s 

Reno, Nevada, 89511. 

Q. Okay. And Mr. Hansen, do you have a connection 

w i t h any of the p a r t i e s who are the working i n t e r e s t owners 

i n t he east h a l f of Section 5? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And what i s your connection? 

A. We have the p a r t i e s and myself, say Peter Neumann 

Family T r u s t , have a m a j o r i t y i n t e r e s t i n the e n t i r e 

s e c t i o n , the e n t i r e h a l f - s e c t i o n . 

Q. Okay. Now, I do not see anywhere on the e x h i b i t 

t h a t the Ap p l i c a n t prepared t h a t shows the va r i o u s 

ownerships i n these leases, I don't see the name Harold 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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Hansen anywhere. Can you — 

A. Noseco Corporation, excuse me. 

Q. Okay. And what i s your r e l a t i o n s h i p t o Noseco 

Corporation? 

A. I'm the president. 

Q. I ' d l i k e you t o — I f you would f i n d i n f r o n t of 

you E x h i b i t A, which i s an operating agreement — 

A. Yes. 

Q. — you brought some of your own f i l e s and records 

today — 

A. Yes. 

Q. — the f i l e s and records of Noseco, t o t h i s 

h e a r i ng; i s t h a t correct? 

A. Yes. 

MS. WALTA: Okay. I ' d l i k e t o approach the 

witness w i t h a document out of --

EXAMINER BROOKS: You may. 

MS. WALTA: -- Noseco's f i l e s here so t h a t he can 

compare these f o r us. 

Q. (By Ms. Walta) This document i s on ye l l o w paper, 

and i s t h a t document out of the f i l e s and records of Noseco 

t h a t you brought t o the. hearing today? 

A. Yes, i t i s . I t ' s — The op e r a t i n g agreement was 

o r i g i n a l l y — i t ' s dated August 12th, 198 6, and then i t was 

re v i s e d sometime i n 1988. 

STEVEN T.. BRENNER, CCR 
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Q. Okay. And what i s i t your understanding t h a t 

t h a t o p e r a t i n g agreement covers? 

A. I t covers — 

MR. FELDEWERT: Objection, Mr. Examiner, I don't 

t h i n k Mr. Hansen has been q u a l i f i e d as an expert witness i n 

petroleum land matters, he hasn't given any i n d i c a t i o n t h a t 

he has the background, educational background and 

experience necessary t o i n t e r p r e t and understand a j o i n t 

o p e r a t i n g agreement. 

MS. WALTA: Well, Mr. Examiner, he i s the owner 

of the i n t e r e s t . You would hope he would understand the 

documents t h a t r e l a t e t o h i s working i n t e r e s t ownership. I 

don't t h i n k he's here t o give expert testimony — 

THE WITNESS: I don't have t o be an expert — 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Excuse me, Mr. Hansen — 

THE WITNESS: — t o read — 

MS. WALTA: I don't t h i n k he needs t o be an 

expert t o t e s t i f y about the documents t h a t he be l i e v e s t h a t 

h i s working i n t e r e s t i s subject t o , t h a t ' s not a — 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Well, I would assume the 

document speaks f o r i t s e l f . I f he wants t o t e s t i f y t h a t 

t here's some k i n d of understanding or o r a l agreement t h a t ' s 

other than what's i n the document, t h a t ' s f i n e , but — I 

mean, he can t e s t i f y t o i t f o r whatever i t ' s worth, but I 

t h i n k t he document speaks f o r i t s e l f . C e r t a i n l y , you know, 
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the D i v i s i o n can read the document and give i t i t s own 

i n t e r p r e t a t i o n — 

MS. WALTA: Well, t h a t ' s f a i r enough, I'm j u s t 

t r y i n g t o get the document i n t o evidence. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Okay, I ' l l s u s t a i n the 

o b j e c t i o n , go ahead. 

MS. WALTA: We can c e r t a i n l y do t h a t . 

Q. (By Ms. Walta) Mr. Hansen, the yel l o w document 

you have — 

A. Yes. 

Q. — i n f r o n t of you, d i d t h a t come out of the 

f i l e s and the records of Noseco t h a t you brought w i t h you 

today — 

A. Yes. 

Q. — t o t h i s hearing? Okay. 

What I would l i k e you t o do i s compare i t t o the 

document t h a t i s E x h i b i t B. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: I be l i e v e i t ' s E x h i b i t A. 

Q. (By Ms. Walta) Or, I'm so r r y , E x h i b i t A, t h a t 

has been marked E x h i b i t A a t t h i s hearing. 

A. I s t h i s i t ? 

Q. No, i t ' s t h a t document. 

A. I t ' s j u s t a copy, except i t ' s yellow. 

Q. Okay, j u s t double-check and make sure i t ' s t he 

same. 
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A. I t ' s the same document. 

MS. WALTA: I would l i k e t o move the admission of 

E x h i b i t A. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Mr. Feldewert? 

MR. FELDEWERT: No o b j e c t i o n . 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Noseco E x h i b i t A i s admitted. 

MS. WALTA: No f u r t h e r questions. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Mr. Feldewert? 

MR. FELDEWERT: I have no questions. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Very good, the witness may 

stand down. 

And i t ' s g e t t i n g l a t e i n the afternoon — Well, 

does t h a t conclude your presentation? 

MS. WALTA: That concludes my — 

EXAMINER BROOKS: I t ' s g e t t i n g l a t e i n the 

aftern o o n , and I was — make sure t h i s got i n the rec o r d on 

some previous McElvain cases, but I wasn't r e a l l y a l e r t 

about i t i n t h i s p o i n t , i n t h i s case. 

This A p p l i c a t i o n was f i l e d by — the a p p l i c a t i o n 

— the A p p l i c a n t i s McElvain O i l and Gas P r o p e r t i e s , I n c . , 

and the evidence r e f l e c t s the ownership i n t e r e s t by T.H. 

McElvain O i l and Gas Lim i t e d Partnership, and I'm not 

sure — I don't r e c a l l i f Ms.. Binion t e s t i f i e d t o the 

r e l a t i o n s h i p between McElvain O i l and Gas P r o p e r t i e s , I n c . , 

and T.H. McElvain O i l and Gas Li m i t e d P a r t n e r s h i p . I f 
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y o u ' l l represent t o me t h a t t h a t ' s i n the record, w e l l , I 

won't worry about i t any f u r t h e r , but — i t ' l l be i n the 

t r a n s c r i p t , but I don't r e c a l l — I overlooked — 

MR. FELDEWERT: Mr. Examiner, I know t h a t we have 

d e a l t w i t h t h a t issue i n other p o o l i n g cases, and the 

testimony has been that. McElvain O i l and Gas P r o p e r t i e s , 

I n c . , i s the operating d i v i s i o n of T.H. McElvain, L t d . 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Yes, and i n other cases I have 

s p e c i f i c a l l y r a i s e d the question t h a t McElvain O i l and Gas 

Pr o p e r t i e s , Inc. — Well, l e t me r e c a l l Ms. Bi n i o n b r i e f l y 

f o r t he purpose of — because I want t o be sure the record 

i s c l e a r on t h i s . 

MONA L. BINION (Recalled), 

the witness h e r e i n , having been p r e v i o u s l y d u l y sworn upon 

her oath, was examined and t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s : 

EXAMINATION 

BY EXAMINER BROOKS: 

Q. Would you s t a t e f o r the record, please, Ms. 

Bi n i o n , what i s the r e l a t i o n s h i p between McElvain O i l and 

Gas P r o p e r t i e s , I nc., and T.H. McElvain O i l and Gas L i m i t e d 

Partnership? 

A. McElvain O i l and Gas Pr o p e r t i e s , I n c . , i s the 

sole general p a r t n e r of T.H. McElvain O i l and Gas L i m i t e d 

P a r t n e r s h i p and operates and manages a l l the p r o p e r t i e s i n 

t h e i r b ehalf. 
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Q. Okay, and i n f i l i n g t h i s A p p l i c a t i o n , d i d 

McElvain O i l and Gas Pro p e r t i e s , I n c . , a c t as the agent of 

T.H. McElvain O i l and Gas Lim i t e d partnership? 

A. They acted as agent and general p a r t n e r and 

operator f o r T.H. McElvain O i l and Gas L i m i t e d P a r t n e r s h i p . 

Q. A l l r i g h t , so the request t h a t t h i s may be 

regarded as an A p p l i c a t i o n f i l e d by T.H. — by McElvain O i l 

and Gas P r o p e r t i e s , I nc., on behalf of T.H. — I'm s o r r y , 

on behalf of T.H. McElvain O i l and Gas L i m i t e d P a r t n e r s h i p , 

c o r r e c t ? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. And i t i s the request of McElvain O i l and Gas 

Pr o p e r t i e s , I n c . , as general partner and agent f o r T.H. 

McElvain O i l and Gas Lim i t e d Partnership t h a t McElvain O i l 

and Gas P r o p e r t i e s , Inc., be named as the operator of t h i s 

u n i t ; i s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Okay, I t h i n k I've made my 

record now. 

THE WITNESS: I ' l l get t h a t entered e a r l y , the 

next one. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Anybody has any f u r t h e r 

questions of t h i s witness before we wrap up? 

MS. WALTA: No. 

MR. FELDEWERT: (Shakes head) 
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EXAMINER BROOKS: Okay, you may stand down. 

Argument? 

MR. FELDEWERT: B r i e f l y , Mr. Examiner. McElvain 

has complied w i t h a l l of the requirements t h a t are s e t 

f o r t h i n the s t a t u t e f o r a p o o l i n g order i n t h i s case. The 

s t a t u t e , as I know we have addressed i n the past, Section 

70-2-17.C, i s very e x p l i c i t t h a t once an i n t e r e s t owner has 

complied w i t h the p r o v i s i o n s of the s t a t u t e , the D i v i s i o n 

s h a l l pool the i n t e r e s t s . 

There are no competing p o o l i n g A p p l i c a t i o n s 

before the D i v i s i o n , there i s no evidence t h a t t h e r e i s a 

v o l u n t a r y agreement t h a t covers the p r o p e r t i e s a t issue. 

I n f a c t , the evidence i n the record i s j u s t the opposite. 

There 1s been no testimony t h a t what has been marked as 

E x h i b i t Number A i s — There's been no testimony t h a t any 

ac t i o n has been taken under what has been marked as E x h i b i t 

Number A. And as I look through E x h i b i t Number A, Mr. 

Examiner, you see the f i r s t page says the acreage covered 

i s s p e c i f i c a l l y o u t l i n e d i n E x h i b i t A. 

And as I t u r n t o E x h i b i t Number A, " I n t e r e s t of 

the P a r t i e s t o t h i s Agreement", i t says except the east 

h a l f of Section 5, 25 North, 2 West, see E x h i b i t "AA". So 

t h i s o p e r a t i n g agreement s p e c i f i c a l l y excludes, as I read 

i t , t he east h a l f of Section 5, 25 North, 2 West. 

So my p o i n t i s , there's no evidence i n the record 
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t h a t t h e r e 1 s any vo l u n t a r y agreement under which any 

proposal can be made pursuant t o a j o i n t o p e r a t i n g 

agreement, there's no evidence i n the record t h a t a 

proposal has been p r o p e r l y made pursuant t o any unknown 

op e r a t i n g agreement. The only t h i n g the D i v i s i o n has 

before i t i s a pr o p e r l y — or a po o l i n g a p p l i c a t i o n t h a t 

complies w i t h the pr o v i s i o n s of the s t a t u t e . 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Okay. Ms. Walta? 

MS. WALTA: Okay. Well, I have already s t a t e d 

the p o s i t i o n of my c l i e n t s t h a t there i s an o p e r a t i n g 

agreement i n place t h a t covers the east h a l f of Section 5 

and t h a t t h i s agency does not have any j u r i s d i c t i o n t o hear 

t h i s A p p l i c a t i o n , t h a t i f any f u r t h e r development of t h i s 

p r o p e r t y occurs, t h a t i t should occur pursuant t o t h i s 

o p e r a t i n g agreement. 

I'm c o n f i d e n t , now t h a t t h i s o p e r a t i n g agreement 

i s i n the record, t h a t you w i l l review i t , and Mr. 

Feldewert's s e l e c t i v e reading of i t i s j u s t simply 

i n c o r r e c t when the document i s read i n i t s e n t i r e t y . 

A d d i t i o n a l l y , I would remind the agency t h a t 

t h e r e i s l i t i g a t i o n pending w i t h respect t o the r i g h t s — • 

the r e l a t i v e r i g h t s of the p a r t i e s i n these p r o p e r t i e s . 

There i s — I f the agency decides t o go forward and make a 

r u l i n g on t h i s A p p l i c a t i o n and i n f a c t does grant i t , I 

would request, because of the pending l i t i g a t i o n , t h a t 
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t h e r e be a s p e c i a l care taken w i t h respect t o any orders 

t h a t are entered and t h a t the OCD does make c l e a r t h a t i t 

does not in t e n d i n any way t o a f f e c t the r i g h t s of the 

p a r t i e s i n the l i t i g a t i o n or t o i n any way r u l e on any 

issue or clai m i n the case or otherwise have any p r e c l u s i v e 

e f f e c t w i t h respect t o what i s before the d i s t r i c t c o u r t . 

I b e l i e v e t h a t the complaint i n t h a t case i s 

already i n the record, I be l i e v e we attached i t t o our 

response, so you do have the b e n e f i t of t h a t complaint and 

the agreement t h a t i s i n dispute when you go t o review the 

record. 

MR. FELDEWERT: Mr. Examiner, j u s t b r i e f l y , I 

need t o p o i n t out two t h i n g s . 

One, the r e was an e f f o r t by t h i s p a r t y t o e n j o i n 

the D i v i s i o n from p r o p e r l y proceeding under the s t a t u t o r y 

p o o l i n g proceedings. That e f f o r t t o get an i n j u n c t i o n i n 

d i s t r i c t c o u r t was denied. 

Secondly, th e r e i s no reason t o depart from the 

Di v i s i o n ' s customary and common course of e n t e r t a i n i n g 

p o o l i n g a p p l i c a t i o n s i n i s s u i n g the ap p r o p r i a t e order. The 

f a c t t h a t there i s pending l i t i g a t i o n over whether or not 

these p a r t i e s had entered i n t o a farmout agreement i s not 

an issue t h a t the D i v i s i o n needs t o be concerned w i t h and 

does not j u s t i f y any s p e c i a l p o o l i n g order being entered i n 

t h i s case. 
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And f i n a l l y , t h i s matter was i n i t i a l l y — We 

f i l e d t h i s p o o l i n g A p p l i c a t i o n sometime i n the s p r i n g , I 

be l i e v e , or — no, e a r l y summer. This was set f o r hearing 

two months ago. There has been a delay i n the e n t r y of an 

order, because they represented t h a t they were going t o 

come before the D i v i s i o n w i t h an a l t e r n a t i v e proposal; they 

have not done t h a t . 

We have sat around f o r two months, w a i t i n g f o r 

t h i s case t o be heard by the D i v i s i o n . There i s no reason 

t o delay t h i s matter any f u r t h e r , and we ask the D i v i s i o n 

act pursuant t o i t s standard procedures and issue an order 

as q u i c k l y as po s s i b l e . 

MS. WALTA: I would l i k e t o read one t h i n g i n t o 

the record, since Mr. Feldewert brought i t up, and also 

make one c o r r e c t i o n w i t h respect t o what Mr. Feldewert j u s t 

t o l d you about the proceedings i n the d i s t r i c t c o u r t . 

He i n d i c a t e d t o you t h a t we had f i l e d and 

a p p l i c a t i o n f o r a p r e l i m i n a r y i n j u n c t i o n and i t had been 

denied. Well, t h a t i s not q u i t e an accurate r e f l e c t i o n of 

what went on. 

We began the proceeding, and as we d i d , got i n t o 

the A p p l i c a t i o n f o r the p r e l i m i n a r y i n j u n c t i o n , Judge H a l l , 

D i s t r i c t Court Judge H a l l , i n d i c a t e d t h a t he be l i e v e d t h a t 

perhaps i t was premature t o be b r i n g i n g t h i s A p p l i c a t i o n i n 

the c o u r t because perhaps th e r e was some remedy a v a i l a b l e 
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from the OCD, and he suggested t h a t we ought t o come over 

and speak t o you about perhaps g e t t i n g some s o r t of 

i n j u n c t i v e r e l i e f . 

So h i s suggestion t o you t h a t the d i s t r i c t c o u r t 

considered a l l the f a c t s r e l a t e d t o what i s going on here 

and decided t o deny the motion f o r p r e l i m i n a r y i n j u n c t i o n 

i s simply i n c o r r e c t , and we cit any p o i n t i n time here, I'm 

c e r t a i n , can go back and r e v i s i t t h i s w i t h t he d i s t r i c t 

c o u r t . 

Also, I would l i k e t o read i n t o t he recor d a 

l e t t e r t h a t Mr. Feldewert sent t o not only Mr. Hansen but 

Mr. Altman, who had prepared the proposal f o r the r e - e n t r y 

and r e - t e s t i n g of the Prowler, and t h i s was sent, 

obviously, on behalf of McElvain. I t s t a t e s : 

McElvain i s i n r e c e i p t of Noseco•s August 10 

l e t t e r p u r p o r t i n g t o remove NM&O as operator of the 

above-referenced w e l l i n favor of Richard Altman and 

Company or i t s subcontractor, Falcon Petroleum as 

successor operator, and Richard Altman's August 14th 

l e t t e r proposing t o abandon the e x i s t i n g producing 

zone i n favor of recompletion e f f o r t s i n the Mesaverde 

forma t i o n . Please be advised t h a t Noseco's attempt t o 

remove NM&O as operator of the subject w e l l i s i n 

v a l i d under the terms of the op e r a t i n g agreement 
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covering the property. I n a d d i t i o n , Richard Altman 

and Company and i t s subcontractor Falcon Petroleum 

have no r i g h t or a u t h o r i t y t o propose any recompletion 

e f f o r t s i n the Prowler Federal Number 2 w e l l or t o 

undertake any e f f o r t s t o operate t h a t w e l l . 

I would submit t o you t h a t t h a t i s the 

exp l a n a t i o n of why we do not have someone here g i v i n g 

testimony about the b e n e f i t s of some a l t e r n a t e proposal. 

Mr. Feldewert and h i s c l i e n t and then 

subsequently NM&O, the ousted operator, have a l l made 

t h r e a t s , both t o my c l i e n t s and t o Mr. Altman, who i s the 

successor operator, t h a t they dare not proceed w i t h any 

recompletion of the e x i s t i n g w e l l , or they may be i n some 

l e g a l d i f f i c u l t y . 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Well, whatever Judge H a l l may 

have s a i d or not sa i d , I'm sure t h a t i f he were t o enter an 

order and i t were t o be served upon the D i v i s i o n , we would 

abide by i t . So i n the absence of such order — 

MS. WALTA: You would do what? 

EXAMINER BROOKS: We would abide by i t . 

MS. WALTA: Oh, t h a t ' s nice t o know. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: I n the absence of such an 

order — 

MS. WALTA: I wasn't so sure about t h a t , 
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a c t u a l l y . I ' l l l e t him know. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: — Case Number 12,693 w i l l be 

taken under advisement. 

MR. FELDEWERT: Thank you. 

MS. WALTA: Thank you. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Okay, we stand adjourned. 

(Thereupon, these proceedings were concluded a t 

5:48 p.m.) 

* * * 

or4 hy u--' OR 
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